
 

 
 

RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 

 
Date: 

 

Wednesday, 22 September 2021 

Time: 
 

10.00 am 

Venue: 
 

Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Leek 

14 September 2021 

 
PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence, if any  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any  

3. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman)  

5. Declaration of Interests:  

 i. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests; 
ii. Other Interests. 

 

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any  

7. 1st Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2021/22 (To Follow) 

8. Medium Term Financial Plan Update (Pages 7 - 24) 

9. Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Review and Focus on Universal Credit 
Implications (Pages 25 - 32) 

10. Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2020-21 (Pages 33 - 44) 

11. Work Programme (Pages 45 - 48) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:- 
i. Chairman’s items; 
ii. Members’ items. 

 

12. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 The Chair to move:- 
 
“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 

public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in 

Section 10 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.” 

 

13. Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 49 - 50) 

 (Paragraph 3 – Financial or business affairs of any particular person) 
(Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual. ) 

 
 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor G Heath (Chair) Councillor T Riley (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor C J S Atkins Councillor J Davies 
Councillor S Ellis Councillor E Fallows 
Councillor M Gledhill Councillor N Hawkins 

Councillor T Holmes Councillor B A Hughes 
Councillor A Hulme Councillor K J Jackson 

Councillor J T Jones Councillor L D Lea 
Councillor L A Malyon Councillor P Routledge 
Councillor D Shaw Councillor P Wilkinson 

Councillor N Yates  
 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 28 JULY 2021 
 

PRESENT: Councillor G Heath (Chair)   
 

 Councillors C J S Atkins, J Davies, E Fallows, M Gledhill, T Hall, 
A Hart, T Holmes, B A Hughes, L D Lea, L A Malyon, 

S E Ralphs MBE, T Riley, P Roberts, P Routledge, D Shaw, 
P Wilkinson and N Yates 

 

  

IN ATTENDANCE: P Trafford Member & Community Services Officer 

 T Cooper Head of Organisational Development and 
Transformation 

 K Pointon Acting Head of Finance 

 J Betts Interim Executive Director Finance and 
Revenues & Benefits 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillors  M Deaville, K Jackson & J Jones 
 

1 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY 
 

There were no substitute members. 
 

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Resources Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel held on 23 June 2021 be APPROVED as a correct record and signed 

by the Chair. 
 

3 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 
PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN) 

 

There were no urgent items. 
 

4 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: 
 

Cllr. P Wilkinson declared that he had received a Covid Business Support Grant. 
 

5 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY 

 

There were no questions. 

 
 
 

 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 28 July 2021 
 

2 
 

6 4TH QUARTER FINANCIAL, PROCUREMENT & PERFORMANCE REVIEW 
2020/21 

 

The Leader opened by congratulating Keith Pointon on his appointment as the new 
Head of Finance. 

 
The review gave the Council’s position for the period ending 31 March 2021 and was 

summarised as follows:- 
 

Subject Headline Reference 

Finance The Finance headlines for the Fourth Quarter were:- 
Performance against budget 

 At the Fourth Quarter stage the General Fund 
provisional outturn for 2020/21 was an underspend of 
£7,315,520 (including £4,521,710 of s31 grants in 

respect of Business Rates Reliefs received in advance to 
be applied in 2021/22). 

Efficiency Programme 

 At Quarter 4 £137,000 in savings had been achieved 
against the 2020/21 revised efficiency target of £519,000 
(General Fund). 

Capital Programme 

 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2020/21 was 
£3.08 million. The outturn for the year was £3.1 million; a 
variance of £0.02 million. 

Treasury Management 

 Cash investments held at 31 March 2021 totalled £18.4 
million. The Ascent loan stood at £14 million and the 

debenture at £5 million; 

 Council borrowing at 31 March 2021 totalled £15 million 
(£14 million related to the Ascent loan); 

 The Council’s net income receipts were £53,457 surplus 
above budget. 

Revenue Collection 

 98.17% of Council Tax was collected by 31 March 2021 

compared to 98.55% for the same period last year; 

 97.35% of Business Rates was collected by 31 March 
2021 compared with 99.3% for the same period last 

year; 

 At the end of the Fourth Quarter debt that was over 60 
days old was £65,090 which compared with £70,729 at 
31 March 2020. 

Appendix A 

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the Fourth Quarter were: 

 9 procurement activities were completed; 

 The Procurement Forward Plan included 74 procurement 
activities for completion in 2021/22 (either SMDC only or 

joint); 

 At 31 March 2021 62% of procurement activity 
undertaken was on the forward plan and the Council had 
paid 95% of its invoices within 30 days during the year.  

Appendix B 

Performance The Performance headlines for the Fourth Quarter were: 

 70% of the key performance indicators met target (43% 
of which were better than the previous year); 

 The Council received 52 complaints and 100 

compliments in the Fourth Quarter; 

 12 projects were rated Green, 19 Grey, 1 Red, 0 Amber 
and 3 Blue. 

Appendix C 

 

 
 

Page 4



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 28 July 2021 
 

3 
 

There were 7 significant areas of underspend (over £50,000), in Building Control 
(£57,821), Customer Services (£57,768), Communities & Cultural (£57,120), 

Corporate Finance (£1,385,019), Waste (£67,536), Horticulture (£62,290) and 
Environmental Health (£120,253). 
 

There were 3 significant areas of overspend, in Property (£512,733), Finance 
Income & Procurement (£138,400) and Leisure (£520,665). 

 
A total of 9,200 Covid Business Grants (£42.6 million) had been paid to local 
businesses. Most of the grants had now closed but additional restriction grants were 

to be available imminently. Details regarding eligibility to these grants would be 
posted on the Council’s website. In addition, Self-Isolation payments of £500 were 

available to individuals on low income who had to self-isolate due to Covid Track and 
Trace. Members expressed their thanks to staff for their efforts in administering the 
payments. Officers provided some clarification to members on aspects of the grants. 

 
Member queries were as follows (responses in brackets):- 

 

 The Churnet Valley Railway (CVR) information was good news. Was the 
outcome of the 2 Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) applications known yet? (Both 

applications had proved successful, however work on the line had been held 
up due to nesting birds.) 

 Was there any conflict between HLF grants and EAF grants regarding the 
potential future use for non-heritage purposes? i.e. any likelihood of restrictive 

covenants regarding 2 uses of the same line? (Both projects were at the 
embryonic stage. The outcome of the bid for the Leek to Stoke line was 
awaited. The Legal officers at SMDC, CVR and Government were all on 

board with the process.) 

 Could the community identify projects for the use of the £545,000 windfall 

receipts from the wind-up of the original Staffordshire Business Rates Pool? 
(The money was already earmarked. Other strategies were in place for 
community projects, with various pots of money to draw from, though care 

was needed to ensure even distribution.) 

 Was the leisure overspend of £520,000 to be viewed as a gift, an investment 

or a loan? (Parkwood Leisure’s income during the lockdowns was nil. The 
payments were essential to maintain the service and the majority of the 
expenditure had been covered through Government funding. The situation 

with Parkwood was now much improved.) 

 What was to happen with the unspent Disabled Facilities Grant surplus? (This 

was earmarked for use in future years. Efforts were ongoing to increase 
expenditure to reduce the surplus.) 

 With regard to the underspend on Customer Services, public access to 
Moorlands House was needed as soon as possible, with notice(s) displayed 
outside to give further guidance to members of the public.(Moorlands House 

was to re-open to the public in September 2021. Appointments had been 
available to speak to staff over the last few months.) 

 
RESOLVED – That the Panel:- 

 NOTE the Fourth Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance 

position as detailed in the Appendices A, B and C and summarised in the 
report; 

 RECOMMEND FOR APPROVAL the allocation of the surplus on the General 

Fund Revenue Account to reserves as explained in Appendix A; Page 5



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 28 July 2021 
 

4 
 

 RECOMMEND FOR APPROVAL the proposal to carry forward revenue 

budget as described in Appendix A; 

 RECOMMEND FOR APPROVAL the proposals to carry forward unspent 

capital budget as set out in Appendix A; 

 RECOMMEND FOR APPROVAL the write offs set out in Appendix D. 

 
 

7 WORK PROGRAMME 
 

Members requested that the following item be added to the Work Programme:- 
 

 Fly Tipping – Was there a need to re-establish a Working Group? 

 Dementia training and equipment. 
 

The ‘Empty Property Strategy’ item was still showing in the ‘To be confirmed’ section 
of the programme. A meeting of the Empty Property Working Group was needed as 

soon as possible. 
 
RESOLVED – That the 2021/22 Work Programme be AGREED, subject to the 

addition of the above for a future meeting. 
 

8 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 

public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public 

in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 
100 I (1)  of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by 

virtue of the Paragraphs indicated. 
 

9 APPLICATION FOR WRITE OFF OF NON-RECOVERABLE DEBTS 

 

Members considered a schedule of balances for write-off. 

 
 

The meeting closed at 11.10 am 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 6



  

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 
Report to Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

 
22nd September 2021 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Appendices Attached 

 Appendix A – Detailed Medium Term Financial Plan Refresh  

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update members on the Medium Term Financial 

Plan (MTFP), in preparation for considering the budget (and associated council tax 
level) in February 2022.   

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee:  
 

 Note the updates proposed to the MTFP set in February 2022, including further 
proposed actions and identifies any further areas they wish to see incorporated 

or considered.  
 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) aims to ensure resources are directed 

effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Corporate Plan. This refresh of 

the MTFP builds on the existing strategy and updates assumptions to reflect 

changes to income, costs and funding. It is not a complete recasting of a new 

plan, or a finalised, balanced longer term plan. Those products will be produced 

as part of the budget setting considerations in February 2022. The purpose of this 

refresh is threefold:  

TITLE: Medium Term Financial Plan Refresh 

 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Council Leader 

  

CONTACT OFFICERS: John Betts – Interim Executive Director 

Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



  

 To update the MTFP produced in February 2021, for known or likely 

changes 

 To highlight service and policy issues likely to impact on budget 

considerations later in the year 

 To provide contextual information so that other issues that may impact on 

short and longer term budgetary issues can be identified and discussed  

3.2 The detailed refresh considers each constituent part of the MTFP as set in 

February 2021 and RAG (Red, Amber, Green) rates each aspect. The current 

capital programme, budget pressures identified in the 2021/22 budget, council tax, 

business rates and levels of reserves all remain substantively robust. Inflation 

assumptions will need to be revised and the delivery of savings plans and fees 

and charges proposals will need to be closely monitored. There is considerable 

uncertainty hanging over the Government’s reviews of business rates and fair 

funding (including new homes bonus), but the likelihood is that these reviews will 

be postponed another year.   

3.3 So, the overall conclusion is that the MTFP remains fundamentally robust and the 
following actions will need to be taken prior to it being agreed alongside the 

2022/23 budget in February 2022: 

 Forecasts are rolled forward to include 2025/26 

 Inflation provision is reviewed alongside economic data to establish 
whether structural inflation is higher than previously forecast 

 Any service budget demands are built in 

 The outcomes of any Government reviews (on council tax, business rates 
and new homes bonus) are considered 

 Any changes to the capital programme (including any identified capital / 
revenue implications of major projects) are reflected 

 Decisions on any outstanding savings proposal and fees and charges are 
also reflected  

  
 

4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective 
targeting of scarce resources,  which is the subject of this report. 

 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the main body of the Report. 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 

None. 

Page 8



  

 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies. 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report. 
 

6.5 Legal 
None. 

 
16.6 Sustainability 

None. 

 
6.7   External Consultation 

  None. 
 
6.8           Risk A    Risk  Assessment 

There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 
identified and explained in the detailed report (and are substantively 

mitigated by the level of reserves). 
 
 

 
JOHN BETTS 

Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits 

 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 
Report appendix A 

 
Moorlands House 

 
Keith Pointon 

01538 395400 Ext. 4193 
 

 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A – Detailed MTFP Refresh 

 

 

                               

 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

 

 

 

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN             

2021/22 to 2024/25 

SEPTEMBER 2021 REFRESH 

 

 

 

 

September 2021 

Page 11



 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s budget 
and policy framework. It aims to ensure resources are directed effectively and 

efficiently towards delivery of the Corporate Plan. It describes the financial 
direction of the Council for planning purposes and outlines the financial pressures 
the Council is likely to experience over the next 4 years. This process facilitates 

the Council in planning the prudent management of its finances, in building 
resilience and in providing for the needs of residents over the long term.   
 

1.2. The MTFP is updated regularly to fit in with the budget cycle. This refresh of the 

MTFP builds on the existing strategy and updates assumptions to reflect changes 
to income, costs and funding. It also includes an updated assessment of key risks 

and a presentation of longer term financial issues which have the potential to 
impact on the Council.  At this point in time, this is not a complete recasting of a 
new plan, or a finalised, balanced longer term plan. Those products will be 

produced as part of the budget setting considerations in February 2022. The 
purpose of this refresh is threefold: 
 

 To update the MTFP produced in February 2021, for known or likely 
changes 

 To highlight service and policy issues likely to impact on budget 

considerations later in the year 

 To provide contextual information so that other issues that may impact on 

short and longer term budgetary issues can be identified and discussed  

1.3. The rest of this report follows the following structure: 

 

 Section 
Strategic priorities of the Council and summary of the current (as of February 
2021) 2021/22 budget and medium term financial plan  

2 & 3 

Update on impact of the pandemic and 2020/21 outturn on the MTFP  4 
Update on capital programme (and revenue consequences) 5 
Update on inflationary pressures and investments  6 
Update on budget demand and budget growth, including fees and charges 7 
Update on local taxes – Council Tax, Business Rates & New Homes Bonus 8 
Impact of savings plans  9 
Use and level of reserves  10 
Summary of financial risks and next steps  11 

 
2. Strategic Priorities 

 

2.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s 
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by members of 

the Council. 
 

2.2. The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2019-2023) establishes the Council’s vision, 

corporate objectives and key priorities for the medium term.  It in effect establishes 
the Council’s commitment in the delivery of service and community leadership to 

Page 12



the residents of the Staffordshire Moorlands. The Medium Term Financial Plan is 

updated to reflect the contents of the plan and to ensure that resources are 
directed towards key priorities.  
 

2.3. The Council’s vision is as follows: “Achieving Excellence in the delivery of high 

quality services that meet the needs and aspirations of our communities”. 
  

 This vision is articulated further by four aims: -:  
 

 Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live 

and work 

 Effective use of resources and provide value for money 

 Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns 

and villages 

 Protect and improve the environment and respond to the climate 

emergency 
 

2.4. These aims are supported by several objectives which also provide the framework 
for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are summarised below:  
 

Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work 
  

 Increased supply of good quality affordable homes 
 Develop a positive relationship with communities 

 Effective relationship with strategic partners 

 Effective support of community safety arrangements including CCTV 

 Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused upon improving health 

Effective use of resources and provide value for money 

 Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money 

 Ensure services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and 
provided “right first time” 

 A high performing and well motivated workforce 
 More effective use of Council assets 

 Effective procurement with a focus on local business 

 Effective use of ICT 

Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and villages 

 Encourage business start-ups and enterprises 

 Flourishing town centres that support the local economy 

 Encourage and develop tourism 

 High quality development and building control with an “open for business” approach 

Protect and improve the environment and respond to the climate emergency 

 Effective recycling and waste management 

 Meeting the challenge of climate change 

 Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health 

 Provision of quality parks and open spaces 

 Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents, businesses and visitors 
 

 

2.5. The Council maintains a Strategic Alliance with High Peak Borough Council, 
formed around the principle of shared services in the pursuit of efficiency and 

realisation of savings. The Strategic Alliance has enabled the implementation and 
transformation of a joint management structure and services, consequently 

Page 13



realising significant efficiency savings. The Council intends to continue to drive 

savings and service improvements through collaboration with its Alliance partner. 
 
 
3. Current Spending Levels 

 

3.1. The starting point for the development of the MTFP is the current level of spending 
and the approved capital expenditure commitments. 
 

3.2. The Council’s current year (2021/22) General Fund budget (and its funding) is 
summarised as follows: 
 

Budget Heading 2021/22   

  £ 

Employees 6,320,320 

Premises 2,202,120 

Transport 141,260 

Supplies & Services 8,039,880 

Benefits 5,010 

Borrowing 224,580 

Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 0 

Financing Costs 231,380 

Total Expenditure 17,164,550 
    

Fees and Charges / Other Income (5,739,900) 

Interest Receipts  (20,710) 

Ascent LLP Income  (522,880) 

Net Expenditure 10,881,060 
    

Council Tax (5,679,150) 

Business Rates Retention (3,801,300) 

Covid-19 Funding (639,400) 

New Homes Bonus (121,880) 

Earmarked Reserves / Balances (4,253,120) 

Collection Fund 4,061,790 

Total Financing (10,433,060) 

    

Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus) 448,000 

    
Efficiency Requirement (448,000) 

    
In Year Deficit / (Surplus) 0 

    
 

3.3. The medium-term projection for capital commitments approved by Members in 
February 2021 is detailed below: -   

 

Service Area  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total  

  
£ £ £ £ £ £ 

Asset Management Plan 775,640 663,160 1,404,360     915,490   1,081,390  4,840,040 
Housing Grants 790,000 1,515,650 1,500,000  1,500,000   1,500,000     6,805,650  
ICT Strategy     116,610    141,900      50,000       50,000       50,000  408,510 
Fleet Management  986,130 1,716,940             -        301,640                -    3,004,710 

Page 14



Other Schemes 408,850 651,920 100,000      41,920        50,000  1,252,690 

 
3,077,230 4,689,570 3,054,360 

   
2,809,050  

   
2,681,390  

   
16,311,600  

Financed by:-             

External Contributions  795,000 1,512,390 1,500,000 1,500,000  1,500,000  6,807,390 
Capital Receipts      110,000      25,000      77,500                -                  -    212,500 
Capital Reserve 557,000             -                -                  -                  -    557,000 

Earmarked Reserves     220,850              -                -                  -                  -    220,850 
Borrowing 1,394,380 3,152,180 1,476,860 1,309,050  1,181,390  8,513,860 

Total Financing  3,077,230 4,689,570 3,054,360 2,809,050 

   

2,681,390  16,311,600 

 
 
3.4. The updated MTFP shows a forecast cumulative deficit position of £0.756 million 

over four years, which represented the required use of reserves to balance the 4 
year plan, as shown below: 

 
 

Reserve 
2020/21 

(Budget) 
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Contingency Reserve     276,010   (256,080)     (307,650)   (186,710)    (5,970) 

 
3.5. The forecast general fund reserves position over the life of the current approved 

MTFP is estimated to be:- 
 

Contingency reserve 
2020/21 

(Budget) 
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

   £ £ £ £ £ 
 

As of February 2021:           
 

Balance at year end 3,480,790 3,224,710 2,917,060 2,730,350 2,724,380 
 

            
 

Minimum requirement  1,107,000 1,480,000 1,480,000 1,480,000 1,480,000 
 

            
 

Headroom 2,373,790 1,744,710 1,437,060 1,250,350 1,244,380 
 

            
 

 

4. Impact of Coronavirus Pandemic & 2020/21 Outturn Position 
 

4.1. The Coronavirus pandemic has had, and is likely to continue having, an adverse 
impact on the Council’s financial position.  The immediate financial impact arose 

from additional expenditure in dealing with the crisis as well as lost income and 
delays in delivering savings targets. The longer-term financial impacts on 
corporate plan objectives are difficult to forecast. Hence the need to maintain 

adequate financial contingency levels.  
 

4.2. The 2020/21 outturn position was positive for the Council. As well as add 
£100,000 to the  earmarked reserve to fund future costs of the Covid-19 recovery 
programme, the Council has added £1,218,000 to the general Contingency 

reserve. This places the Council in a much better position to respond to increased 
levels of risk.  

 

Page 15



4.3. The 2021/22 financial position will be monitored through the remainder of the year 

taking into account the actual recovery of income levels and services and any 
further updates on Government funding. 

 
5. Capital Programme & Revenue Consequences  

5.1. The 2020/21 outturn position on capital spend was in line with the revised budget, 

so there is no material variation from the existing MTFP plans as a result of this. 
The Capital Programme presented to Members in February 2021will be  reviewed, 
re-profiled and updated as part of 2022/23 budget setting considerations, 

particularly to where projects have been delayed due to the lockdown periods, 
social distancing measures and contractor availability. In addition, the Council will 

develop an Asset Management Strategy to ensure the future delivery of efficient 
asset management.  This work will be progressed once condition surveys have 
been undertaken and the updated 30 year costs of maintaining the general fund 

asset stock are known.  
  

5.2. The capital programme can be funded from a number of options which include 
external grants and contributions from third parties comprising of Government and 
lottery funding; capital receipts from asset sales as part of the asset management 

plan; earmarked revenue reserves and borrowing. Estimated capital receipts of 
£0.21m will be available over the next five years (subject to a review of surplus 

assets), which is a relatively modest target. Where no other resources can be 
applied, borrowing becomes the funding option for the programme.  The Council’s 
current estimated borrowing requirement over the 4 years is shown below and 

there are no material changes to this in the refresh of the MTFP to date:- 
 

 
 
   

 
   

 
5.3. The Council has a joint venture housing company established in partnership with 

Your Housing Group (YHG) called Ascent.  The company developed some 290 

affordable homes up until 2016. Since then, further developments have not been 
feasible. A £5million debenture facility was fully drawn in 2014/15 and £14million 

of a £20million loan facility has been drawn to date. As Ascent  is dissolved and a 
new funding agreement is confirmed with YHG, a new loan facility will be 
developed and any impairment on the debenture will be crystallised. These will 

feed into the MTFP when new agreements have been finalised.  
 

5.4. In addition, there are other major capital projects in the process of being designed 
and some emerging national policy issues that may have financial impacts locally, 
such as the Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (DEFRA) 

consultation on consistency in household and business recycling in England. In 
the case of any major capital project, the default presumption is that schemes will 

be self-financing, and any financial implications will be identified in decision-
making reports to Cabinet that will then feed into the MTFP. In the case of any 
national changes to service policy, the default presumption is that central 

Government will fund the costs of any changes imposed nationally. Again, detailed 

Borrowing Requirement 

 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £ £ £ £ 
Total 224,580 323,870 379,190 438,350 

     

Page 16



reports to Cabinet will identify if this assumption is incorrect, with any financial 

implications reflected in an updated MTFP.  
 

6. Inflationary Pressures and Investments 
   

6.1. Inflation forecasts are made reflecting the composition of the Council’s 
expenditure, resulting in an inflation rate specific to the Council. This includes the 
impact on staff pay, supplies and services, premises related costs and transport. 

The costs to the Council arising from inflation are forecast in the current MTFP as 
follows:  

 

 

Expenditure/Income 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
          
  £ £ £ £ 

Employee Costs 195,060 142,790 65,000 65,560 

Premises Costs 27,190 27,530 27,870 28,220 

Transport - - 1,410 1,430 

Supplies and Services 135,880 113,760 108,870 110,010 

In-Year Inflation Pressure 358,130 284,080 203,150 205,220 

          
 

When the MTFP was set (in February 2021) HM Treasury were invoking a public 
sector pay freeze and inflation was depressed by the pandemic. At the time of this 

refresh (August 2021), the Retail Price Index (RPI) was 2.7% and Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) was 2.5%, with the Bank of England forecasting that inflation may hit 
4% by the end of the calendar year. In addition, a national 1.5% pay increase offer 

has been rejected by the Unions, so will need revisiting. It is unclear whether 
current inflation rates are a blip created by a temporary uptick in demand as 

lockdown eases, or whether rising prices reflect a systemic shift in the economy. 
However, it does look as if the current MTFP forecasts (pay (1%); and an amalgam 
of premises (1.25%), transport (1%) and supplies (1.5%) price increases will need 

reviewing prior to the budget being set, with the likelihood that budgetary provision 
for inflation will need to increase.  

 
6.2. The expectation is that interest rates will continue at current low levels throughout 

the period of the MTFP, with only a small potential increase in the 4 th year. The 

Council’s advisors - Link – forecast average investment income earnings of near 
0% return. 

 
6.3. The PWLB consultation was released at the end of November 2020 and, as was 

widely anticipated, rates were reduced by 1%. This has not directly impacted the 

forecast of borrowing interest rates, but it does provide more options for the Council 
to borrow,  particular for longer periods. However, there are no material changes to 

existing forecasts and the budget remains as follows:  
 

Treasury Budgets – Borrowing 

costs and investment Income 
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £ £ £ £ 
Borrowing Costs 224,580 323,870 379,190 438,350 

Investment Income (543,590) (506,990) (509,550) (524,120) 

Page 17



7. Budgetary Demand & Growth  

 
7.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council in February 2021 included 

changes in budgetary demand for a number of factors, the most noticeable of 

which were the following:  
 

o Leisure centres – one year support of £272,000, net of further Government 

assistance  
o Car parks - income loss due to Covid has been included to the sum of 

£81,000 for one year only.  
o Waste Collection - Recycling cost pressures (partly offset by increased 

credits income) of £163,700  due to increased tonnages  
 

 Early forecasts (for Quarter 1) indicate that this additional budget capacity is 
sufficient. In addition, other areas identified in the MTFP where there may be a  

requirement to include upfront increased budget demand have been covered by 
the creation of new (or increased) reserves to cover climate change related 
projects and Organisational Development.  So, the budgetary demands identified 

in February 2021 remain valid.  
 

7.2. It is assumed, considering the financial pressures faced by the Council, that any 
local issues that necessitate budget growth will be financed by internal spending 
reductions elsewhere. Occasionally, it is necessary to include budget growth to 

meet spending commitments, but there is no indication that any such items are 
required in this refresh of the MTFP. 

 
7.3. The MTFP assumes that income losses suffered in 2020/21 arising out of the 

Covid19 outbreak have substantially recovered by 2021/22 except for car parking, 

which is expected to fully recover by 2022/23. Early indicators from Quarter 1 
monitoring indicate that this assumption remains sound.   

 
7.4. The Medium Term Financial Plan would normally project that the Council will 

increase fees and charges (and other income) broadly in line with inflation, 

acknowledging that certain income streams may not increase each year and 
others are fixed or subject to periodic review. However, the assumed annual 

increase in base income has been suspended for years 1 and 2 of the plan, whilst 
fees and charges income levels recover from the Covid19 shock 

 

7.5. Additional revenue arising out of an increase in car park charges and Parking 
Strategy has been reprofiled into 2022/23 (generating an estimated £85,000 

additional income). This is at risk if new tariffs are not introduced.  
 

8. Local Taxes – Council Tax, Business Rates & New Homes Bonus 

   
Council Tax 

8.1. The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition of 
capping.  However, the Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more than a 
certain percentage is subject to referendum. For 2021/22, this percentage was 2%, 

but alternatively, lower tier Authorities had the option to increase the Band D 
equivalent by a set £5 or 2% – whichever was higher. 

 

Page 18



8.2. The February 2021iteration of the MTFP assumed a 1.9% increase from 2022/23 

onwards. In addition, provision was included to reflect anticipated growth in Council 
Tax base over the next 4 years. Having seen the growth in tax base slow during the 
pandemic as house-building and employment levels were affected; it is assumed that 

this will recover in 2022/23, boosted by an upturn in the economy.   Current 
assumptions are as follows:  

 

8.3. There has been no further update from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) regarding the principles by which a Council Tax increase for 

2022/23 will be regarded as “excessive” and require a referendum.  Therefore, it is 
sensible at this point in time to assume 1.9% increases, purely for planning purposes 

within the MTFP.  
  

Business Rates 
 

8.4. Under the 50% Business Rates Retention system, the Authority retains 40% of 
Business Rates less a tariff that is payable into a pool maintained by a number of 

Staffordshire Authorities. This amount is then compared to a Funding Baseline with 
any amount in excess of this Baseline subject to levy, or conversely if the amount of 

retained Business Rates is below this Baseline, the loss is capped by a safety net 
payment. The MTFP does not anticipate the Council falling below the Baseline. 

 

8.5. The MTFP anticipates that Business Rates retention will be above the baseline. Net 
income is somewhat suppressed due to the award of reliefs including increased small 

business rate relief, caps on inflation to the multiplier, extended rural relief, and the 
increase in the provision for RV reductions on successful appeals. To compensate 
for the loss of business rates, the Government distributes grants (known as  Section 

31 grants) to Councils. 
 

8.6. As part of the Staffordshire Pool, the levy or the safety net payment is made to or 
from the Pool instead of Central Government. If the Council was not in the 
Staffordshire Pool it would have to pay 50p in the £1 to the Government as a levy, 

effectively limiting the income the Council can gain from business rates growth. 
However, as part of the Pool, the Council retains 40% of this levy plus 20% or 

£215,000, whichever is the larger; meaning that for every £1 achieved above the 
baseline at least 60% is retained by the Council with the remainder going to the Pool 
to be distributed within Staffordshire. The benefit to the Council of being part of the 

Pool arrangement is estimated to be £451,730 in 2021/22. 
 

8.7. As a result of Covid-19 and the impact recession and social distancing measures are 
having on businesses, there is a risk that the Council may see a reduction in the 

Increased Council Tax Income 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

 £ £ £ £ 

Council Tax increase (165,520) (107,900) (111,090) (114,070) 

Revenue from tax base growth (5,980) (59,790) (45,820) (46,690) 

TOTAL (171,500) (167,690) (156,910) (160,760) 

     

Council Tax Income Budget (5,679,150) 

 

(5,846,840) (6,003,750) (6,164,510) 

     

Page 19



business tax base and therefore business rates retention. A reduction of 0.5% has 

been included in this version of the MTFP. There is also a risk associated with non-
payment, although collection rates for 2020/21 generally held up. 97.4% of Business 
Rates was collected by 31 March 2021, compared with 99.3% for the same period 

last year. Bad debt provision of 1% has been set for 2021/22; with 0.8% in 2022/23; 
returning to the pre-Covid level of 0.6% in 2023/24 and 2024/25. 

 
New Homes Bonus 

8.8. The Government consulted on a replacement for the New Homes Bonus scheme 

earlier this year. Any new housing incentive scheme will reflect a more targeted 
approach that rewards local government where they are ‘ambitious’ in delivering 

housing growth. At this stage, there is no further detail on what form the new scheme 
will take. In the absence of any further information, this refresh of the MTFP assumes 
that the Council will continue to receive funding at a base level of £150,000 per 

annum. However, this does remain a major to the viability of the Plan beyond 
2021/22. 

 
9. Impact of Savings Plans 

 

9.1. The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by Members in 
February 2017, which identified a programme of £3.1 million in savings to be made 

over the period 2017/18 – 2020/21. Subsequently, a review was undertaken in 
February 2019 to assess the timing and estimated value of future savings based on 
the current programme.  The Covid-19 recovery phase and impact on the Council’s 

financial position has continued into 2021/22.  Therefore, it is recognised that 
delivering the 2021/22 savings requirement of £448,000 may prove difficult.  The 

Council has an earmarked reserve to support any reprofiling requirements of the 
efficiency programme to cover this and there will be greater certainty following 
Quarter 2 monitoring. No assumptions in respect of any ‘new’ efficiency programme 

have been incorporated into this refresh of the plan. 
 

10. Use and Level of  Reserves 
 

10.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is underpinned by a number of assumptions that 
have been made explicit in this report. New information, when it emerges, may 
require the Council to alter its assumptions with a consequential effect on the 

Council’s financial position. Members receive quarterly updates on performance 
against the budget, indicating whether such assumptions remain robust.   

 

10.2. The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks cannot be 

fully mitigated. In February 2021 the minimum general reserve contingency balance 
was set at £1.480m with an anticipation at 1st April 2021 it would hold a contingency 

reserve of £3.5m. At outturn the contingency was at £4.1m, indicating a relatively 
healthy level of reserves, albeit acknowledging higher levels of financial risk too.    

 

10.3. The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Budget and Medium 
Term Financial Planning process. Risks are assessed, mitigated and actively 

managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services effectively within the funding 
at its disposal. The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded 
within this Medium Term Financial Plan:  

 

Revenue Risks Capital Risks 

Page 20



 

10.4. In addition, there are several financial risks within the MTFP related to local recovery 
post Covid-19 that need to be regularly reviewed and considered:- 

 

o The period of recovery is prolonged which has further cost pressure 
consequences for the Council – especially regarding the operation of leisure 

centres 
o Fees and Charges income levels do not return to pre-Covid levels as 

forecast 

o The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic 
problems in town centres and the broader economy, as well as community 

safety issues, which lead to increased cost pressures 
o Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic support. 
o Further national lockdowns / tiered systems imposed which leads to further 

pressures on businesses and households and additional costs to the Council 
in providing support 

 
11. Summary of Financial Risks and Next Steps 

11.1. A summary of all the considerations above is given in the annex to this report, with 

each factor RAG (Red, Amber, Green) rated, using the following criteria:  
  

 

Red 
Either the financial position has materially shifted from that in the MTFP set in 
February 2021 in a negative way (i.e. costs have increased and / or income has 
reduced); or, there are external factors beyond the influence of the Council, which 
could detrimentally impact on the financial position of the Council.  

Amber The financial position has shifted from that in the MTFP set in February 2021 in a 
negative way (i.e. costs have increased and / or income has reduced), but there are 
mitigating actions available (e.g. short term reserves) or policy decisions available 
to resolve the pressure, but they have not yet been implemented.   

Green The current financial forecast remains as set in the MTFP set in February or has 
improved since that time (i.e. costs have reduced and / or income has grown).  

 
11.2. The overall conclusion is that the MTFP remains fundamentally robust and the 

following actions will need to be taken prior to it being agreed alongside the 2022/23 
budget in February 2022: 

 Inflationary assumptions 

 Interest rates 

 Revenue consequences of 
capital 

 Housing benefits 

 Fees and charges 

 Universal Credit 

 Business Rates Retention 

scheme 

 Council Tax collection 

 New Homes Bonus 

 Financial benefits from 
partnerships / shared services 

 Pension costs 

 Insurance costs 

 Waste management costs 

 Brexit implications 

 Interest rates  

 External funding 

 Capital receipts 

 Capacity to deliver capital 

programme 

 Project overspend 

 Project overrun 

 External factors (e.g. 

planning objections, judicial 
reviews etc. leading to 
project delay) 

 Housing Joint Venture 

 Suppliers / Contractors / 

Contract Management 

 Weather  

 Brexit implications 

Page 21



 Forecasts are rolled forward to include 2025/26 

 Inflation provision is reviewed alongside economic data to establish whether 
structural inflation is higher than previously forecast 

 Any service budget demands are built in 

 The outcomes of any Government reviews (on council tax, business rates and 

new homes bonus) are considered 

 Any changes to the capital programme (including any identified capital / 
revenue implications of major projects) are reflected 

 Decisions on any outstanding savings proposal and fees and charges are also 
reflected  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 22



Annex 1 - September 2021 Review of Staffordshire Moorlands MTFP 

Area RAG Comment 

Revenue Consequences of 

Capital Spend  

 The outturn position on capital spend was in line with the 

revised budget, so do not expect much variation from 
existing MTFP plans. 

Return on Investments  There is unlikely to be any change to interest rates in the 
short term, but the MTFP already reflects this. There is 

likely to be a shortfall on income arising from the loan to 
Ascent, once the company is dissolved.  

Inflation Pressures   MTFP is built on the following Inflation assumptions: pay 
(1%); and amalgam of premises (1.25%), transport (1%) 

and supplies (1.5%).These assumptions were set when 
HM Treasury were invoking a public sector pay freeze 
and inflation was depressed by the pandemic. The pay 

estimate (for 2021/22) now looks low – a  national 1.5% 
pay increase offer has been rejected by the Unions, so 
will need revisiting  

Increased / (Reduced) Budget 

Demand  

 Generally, the additional allocations incorporated into the 

2021/22 budget seem to be adequate (as at interim 
Quarter 1 monitoring), including the level of support for 
Parkwood (£272k) and support for reduced car park 

income (£81k). There is the potential for further Facilities 
Management costs, but only for this financial year (which 
could be met from one-off Covid resources). 

Budget Growth   There is nothing to suggest that the current principle that 

any local issues that necessitate budget growth are  
financed by internal spending reductions elsewhere does 
not still hold. Specific issues previously identified in the 

MTFP (around climate change related projects and 
Organisational Strategy) have been covered by additional 
earmarked reserves, as part of the 2020/21 outturn.   

Fees and Charges   Inflationary increases are built into the MTFP, plus £85k 

in 2022/23 and £125k in 2024/25 from additional car park 
income, for which decisions on new tariffs will need to be 
made. 

Council Tax Income   There has been no indication from MHCLG regarding the 

level at which a referendum is required to raise council 
tax (known colloquially as the “capping guide”), but given 
forecast inflation levels the current MTFP assumption of 

1.9% remains valid.  

Collection Fund   Collection rates for both Business Rates (97.4%) and 
Council Tax (98.2%) have remained high, so MTFP 
projections remain fundamentally sound. The removal of 

furlough funding may have a negative impact on Council 
Tax recovery, but will need reviewing later in the year.  

Government Funding Reviews   The Government’s position on a replacement for New 
Homes Bonus, the future or expansion of Business Rates 

Retention and the Fair Funding review all remain 
unknown. The outcomes from these reviews pose the 
biggest risks to the Authority. However, the likelihood is 

no implementation of any changes for a further year.  

Efficiency & Rationalisation 
Plan  

 No ongoing savings requirement from 2022/23, but £448k 
is required in 2021/22, which may be negatively impacted 
by the longer term effects of the pandemic.  

Use of and Levels of Reserves  Following the 2020/21 outturn, another £1.218m has 

been added to the general contingency, which is 0.6m 
better than anticipated in the February 2021 MTFP. 

 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

Report to Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel   
 

22nd September 2021 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 

1.1 The Council is obliged to consider each year whether to revise its current 

council tax reduction scheme, leave it as it is or replace it with a completely 

new scheme. The proposal is to retain the current scheme for 2022/23. 

However, the introduction of Universal Credit means that the current scheme 

is proving increasingly difficult to administer and more difficult for recipients of 

the discount to understand and manage. Therefore, there is also a proposal to 

explore options for redesigning the scheme to provide greater certainty in the 

light of Universal Credit. Any decisions on design and subsequent  

implementation would occur by 2023/24 at the earliest, to allow for extensive 

consultation.     

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 That the Committee recommends that Cabinet:  

 

 Approves the proposal to retain the existing council tax reduction scheme 

for 2022/23  

 Approves the proposal for further research to be undertaken into 

alternative designs for a council tax reduction scheme that better deals with 

the impact of Universal Credit, subject to a further report and consultation  

 

 
 

TITLE: Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Review 
& Focus on Universal Credit Implications 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Council Leader 

  
CONTACT OFFICERS:  John Betts – Interim Executive Director 

 
Joanne Wheeldon – Head of Head of 
Revenues & Benefits 

 

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



  

3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 In April 2013 Council Tax Benefit was abolished and replaced with a local 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS). The Local Authority is required to 

review its Council Tax Reduction Scheme on an annual basis and if it 

determines to make changes, then it must consult on any proposed revised 

scheme. 

3.2 The local CTRS, as currently designed, works well. There have been no 

particular difficulties in implementation and eligibility is well defined and 

published on the Council’s website1, so potential recipients are clear about 

eligibility and how to apply. So, the proposal is to continue using the current 

scheme for 2022/23.   

3.3 However, there is a need to review whether, in the longer term, the current 

CTRS scheme is compatible with Universal Credit.  Nationally, around 60% of 

working-age benefit recipients in England now claim UC rather than any one of 

the six ‘legacy’ benefits that UC replaced. Universal Credit is based on “real 

time information” which means it often fluctuates, generating changes in CTRS 

eligibility. As of 1st July 2021 the total award of benefit for Staffordshire 

Moorlands was £4.357m. The caseload consisted of  5,066 cases, of which 

2,983 were of working age (1,616 on UC), which accounts for 53% of total 

spend. From the beginning of June to mid August over 4,400 Universal Credit 

changes were processed locally. 

3.4 So many frequent changes to CTR eligibility, as a result of Universal Credit 

fluctuations, makes household budgeting difficult and generates a 

considerable administrative burden. In response to this, over 70 Local 

Authorities have introduced income banded CTR schemes. Under such 

schemes, small changes in income (from benefits, earnings or other) do not 

usually change the amount of CTR received. This creates greater certainty 

and makes household budgeting easier. It also reduces the administrative 

burden on the Council. Therefore, the  proposal is to research the possibility of 

designing an Income Banded Council Tax Reduction Scheme and then, if 

appropriate, designing some local options.  Any proposed designs will be put 

before Elected Members for comment prior to consultation, which will need to 

be extensive, given the potential impact on households. Hence, any 

implementation would be 1st April 2023, at the earliest.  

 

4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 Any change to eligibility and simplification of processes will make it easier for 
residents to access this service (to support residents eligible for council tax 

discount), improve financial resilience and improve the efficiency of service 
delivery.   

                                                 
1
 https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/discounts_exemptions  

Page 26



  

 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 The options available (including doing nothing) are analysed in the summary 
above.     

 
6. Implications 
 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

No Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is required at this point in time, 
but if an alternative scheme is designed for consultation then a 
comprehensive EIA will be required, alongside broad consultation. 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

The proposal to not change the scheme for 2022/23 has no direct 
financial implications and any newly designed scheme put forward for 
consultation will reflect the parameters of the current financial budget.  

 
6.5 Legal 

Section 13A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires each 
billing authority in England to make a scheme specifying the reductions 
which are to apply to amounts of council tax payable. Under schedule 

1A (3) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992,  each financial year, 
the Council needs to consider whether to revise the scheme, leave as is 

or replace it. Consultation must occur on any options required to change 
the scheme prior to implementation.  
 

16.6 Sustainability 
None. 

 
6.7   External Consultation 

  See comment at 6.3 above.  

 
6.8           Risk A    Risk  Assessment 

There are no immediate risks, but if a new scheme is designed for 
consultation then a risk assessment and risk register will be created as part 
of the project management of the consultation process (and any subsequent 

implementation, should any new design go ahead).  
 

 
JOHN BETTS 

Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits 

 

Page 27



  

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 

 

 

Moorlands House 

 

John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk 
07581 010628 

 
  

Page 28

mailto:John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk


  

Detail of Current Council Tax Reduction Scheme and a Proposal for a Review  

 

7. Background 

7.1. From April 2013 Council Tax Benefit was abolished and replaced with a local 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme. The Local Authority is required to review its 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme on an annual basis and if it determines to 

make changes then it must consult on the revised scheme. 
 

7.2. There is no proposal to change the Authority’s Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

for 2022/23.  

 

7.3. However, there is proposal to explore and possibly redesign the Council’s 

current scheme in response to the introduction of Universal Credit, with a 

potential implementation date of 1st April 2023. The reason for the long lead-in 

time is to ensure that any change is well designed and that there is 

comprehensive consultation. The rationale for this review is given below.  
 

8. Impact of Universal Credit  

8.1. Since the introduction of a local Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) the 

landscape has drastically changed. Universal Credit (UC) has also been 

introduced and is now operational in every local authority area in England. 

Around 60% of working-age benefit recipients in England now claim UC 

rather than any one of the six ‘legacy’ benefits that UC replaced. Universal 

Credit is based on real time information which means that any change in 

income generates a change in Council Tax Reduction through data files from 

the  Department of Work & Pensions (DWP).  
 

8.2. This means that local citizens are experiencing frequent changes in their 

Council Tax Reduction allocation, which in turn impacts on the amount of 

Council Tax payable. This results in residents receiving multiple bills and 

letters, making household budgeting very difficult. It has led to a considerable 

increase in the number of contacts, particularly when Council Tax bills are 

issued and there is an additional administrative and legal burden in then 

collecting and recovering substantial numbers of small amounts.  
 

8.3. As of 1st July 2021 the total award of benefit for Staffordshire Moorlands was  

£4.357m. The caseload consisted of  5,066 cases, of which 2,983 were of 

working age (1,616 on UC), which accounts for 53% of total spend. From the 

beginning of June to mid August over 4,400 Universal Credit changes were 

processed locally. 

 
 

9. Income Banded Council Tax Reduction Schemes 

 

Page 29



  

9.1. This is one reason why some local authorities have introduced income 

banded CTR schemes2. Under such schemes, small changes in income (from 

benefits, earnings or other) do not usually change the amount of CTR 

received. This creates greater certainty and makes household budgeting 

easier. It also reduces the administrative burden on the Council.  

 

9.2. The potential move to a new income banded scheme is for those of working 

age. The scheme for pensioners is set nationally and pensioners would not 

see any change to the support they receive. 

 

9.3. Generally, the scheme could be designed along the following design 

principles, although it must be emphasised that this is not intended to pre-

empt any review: 

 

a. If the applicant or partner is in receipt of one of the main passported 

benefits (Income Support, Job Seeker’s Allowance Income Based and 

Income Related Employment and Support Allowance etc) they will be 

placed in the highest band of the scheme  - generally this would be 

expected to be 100% support. 

 

b. Working age households will receive a discount, depending on their 

level of income and the band that they fall into. For example (and this is 

purely illustrative) the bandings could be organised as follows: 

 

 

c. The level of CTR does not change with fluctuations within income 

bands. It only changes if net household income moves between bands.  

 

d. Under any such scheme such as this, there would be the option of 

disregarding certain benefits and allowances (such as Disability Living 

Allowance, War Disablement Benefits, Child Benefit and child 

maintenance etc) so at to protect the most vulnerable. There would be 

also an option to introduce a Hardship Fund for those most 

detrimentally affected by any changes.  

 

                                                 
2
 The New Policy Institute reported, in June 2021, that there were  72 income-banded schemes in place across 

the country. 

Net income, above a given 
threshold 

Maximum CTR 
award  

£0 - £4.99 Up to 100% 

£5 - £14.99 A% 
£15.00 - £29.99 B% 

£30.00 - £49.99 C% 

£50.00 - £74.99 D% 
£75.00 - £99.99 E% 

£100.00 - £124.99 F% 
£125 upwards 0% 

Page 30



  

9.4 It should be emphasised that savings are not the driver for this change. Any 

such scheme can be designed within the current financial envelope. The 

primary driver is to simplify the process and provide greater certainty for 

households. There is a secondary driver not to increase administrative costs 

to the Council from greater changes to existing CTR through UC fluctuations. 
 

10. Next Steps  

 

10.1. The proposal is to seek Member approval to research the possibility of 

designing an Income Banded Council Tax Reduction Scheme, by contacting 

Local Authorities who have introduced (or are considering introducing) such 

schemes and then modelling options locally.  
 

10.2. Any proposed designs will be put before Elected Members for comment prior 

to consultation, which will need to be extensive, given the potential impact on 

households. 
 

10.3. Any implementation (should Members agree a new design following 

consultation) would be implemented for April 2023 at the earliest 
 

10.4. There are no proposals to change the current local council tax reduction 

scheme for the financial year 2022/23.       

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

22 September 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2020-
21 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader 
SMDC 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Sally Hampton - Member and Community 

Services Officer 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 
Non specific 

 
Appendices Attached –  

Appendix A -Terms of Reference and Membership of Overview and Scrutiny 

Panels 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 To provide Councillors with a summary of the work undertaken by the 
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Panels during 2020 – 2021 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the report be noted. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 During 2020/21, the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Panels continued to 
scrutinise performance internally/externally, hold the Cabinet to account and 

contribute to policy development.  The range of work and issues considered by 
each Panel during 2020/21 are summarised in sections 6 - 9 of the report.  
Appendix A of the report contains the terms of reference of each Panel and its 

membership. 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 

effective scrutiny and development of Council policies and services.  
 

 
 
 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 10



  

 
Mark Trillo  

Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) 

 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Contact details 

Overview & Scrutiny Panel agendas and reports 
 

Sally Hampton 
Member and Community Services Officer 

sally.hampton@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 

5. Detail 
 

5.1 The Cabinet is responsible for making the day-to-day decisions concerning the 

implementation of policies of the Council.  Overview and Scrutiny Panels 
ensure that the Cabinet is publicly held to account for their actions and seeks 

to promote open and transparent decision- making and democratic 
accountability.  They also have a role in researching, scrutinising other bodies 
and ensuring that the Council’s policy and budget framework is respected and 

realising the key aims of the Council’s Corporate Plan.  Overview and Scrutiny 
Panels may appoint Task and Finish Working Groups/Sub-Committees to 

examine any issue in more depth.   
 
5.2 Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, meetings of the Scrutiny Panels and Working 

Groups have been held virtually and effective participation has continued to 
take place with the involvement of partners, outside organisations and 

individuals. A noticeable increase in the number of councillors attending such 
meetings and the public observing meetings has been noted.  Cabinet 
Portfolio Holders also attend meetings to provide updates or answer 

questions. Further to a request from the previous year’s Annual Scrutiny 
Report,  a summary of the questions received for each Panel is detailed 

below. 
 

Scrutiny 
Panel 

Summary of Questions 

Resources  Funding for homeless people during the Covid-19 
Lockdown. 

 Budget for the Rural Bus Service Initiative and other 

pilot projects. 

 Breakdown of the costs and income related to 

SMDC car parks. 
 

Service 

Delivery 
 Use of Disabled Facility Grants to promote 

independent living at home for those with disabilities 

 Provision of outdoor activities provided by Parkwood 

Leisure  

 The Council’s Local Enforcement Plan and how this 
can be accessed by the public. 

 If a time period of 2 years was reasonable to 
determine an application for an unauthorised 

development that was causing environmental 

Page 34

https://democracy.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?CT=13106,13236


  

problems for neighbours. 

 Creation of a Council Member Permit Holder parking 
space on Silk Street Car Park 

 Costs of both the painting and subsequent removal 

the parking space 

 A full detailed register and maintenance information 

of all SMDC assets  

 The amount Biddulph Town Council will receive for 

its Artisan Market and when payment will be 
received. 

 If the full cost of the creation and subsequent 

removal of the parking space had been repaid. 

 Timescales for applicants and agents to receive a 

response from the Planning Department. 

 If there would be a review of the Council’s Tourism 

Strategy, given the increase in staycations due to 
the pandemic. 

 Support for farmers now that Britain was no longer a 
member of the EU 

 Re-use of the mills given the potential impact on 

import taxes following the departure from Britain 
from the EU 

 Refurbishment of the roundabout on St John’s Road 
in Biddulph 

 Maintenance of the Victorian lamp standard on Leek 
Market Place 

 Update on the management transfer of Wetley Moor 

Common to Staffordshire Wildlife Trust 

 Fees for the Leek Trestle Market consultation and 

the decision making process 

 Query around advice given to Cabinet Members 

 Operating times of Tape Street Car Park in Cheadle 

 A further update on the transfer of Wetley Moor 

Common to SWT 

Community   Responsibility of District Councillors under the 
Equality Act 2010 to counter racism and promote 

diversity in their actions, statements and behaviour 

 Hate crime data between 2015 to 2019 

 SMDC’s actions to reduce carbon emissions 

 Receipt of Covid grant funding for Biddulph Town 
Council 

 Completion of the Council’s Tree Planting Strategy 

 Role of community and voluntary groups in 

maintaining public assets such as benches, planted 
areas and bus shelters 

 Progress made by the Leader in relation to the 
improvement of rural bus services 

 Plans for No 3, The Villas to house homeless people 

 Whether the final version of the Climate Change 
Action Plan will include additional information to 

Page 35



  

ensure the timely, costed, and resourced delivery of 

the Plan 
 

Health  Use of additional money from Government to 

employ Marshalls to check on Covid -19 regulation 
compliance 

 SMDC assessment of the services available in Leek 

for those who use hearing aids 

 Support for vulnerable residents as the Council 

recovers following the pandemic 

 Clarification of the criteria used locally to identify 

adult carers to receive vaccinations 

 How the Panel delivers on fundamental principles of 
good scrutiny 

 

 
5.3  Each Overview and Scrutiny Panel is responsible for setting its own Work 

Programme.  These are informed by the Council’s Forward Plan containing 
Key Decisions to be made by the Council’s Cabinet. The Work Programme is 
listed as a standing item for review and approval at each Panel meeting.  

Executive Directors work closely with the Chairs of each Panel to assist in the 
planning of agendas, provide briefings and ensure the Panel meets its 

objectives.  Support is also provided by the Democratic Services Team 
together with Officers from the Council’s various service areas.  

 
6.  Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 

6.1  To ensure that financial management is sound thorough consideration was 
given to regular financial, procurement and performance reports, which 
included performance against the budget and a review of fees and charges. 

Members were kept up to date with progress with regard to the Council’s 
Efficiency Programme, revenue collection, treasury management, Capital 

Programme and customer feedback. Consideration was also given to a 
schedule of write off balances which were deemed as non-recoverable. 

  

6.2  Members considered a Financial Recovery and Positive Legacy report which 
outlined the work that that had commenced on the Council’s recovery from 

COVID 19 in late April 2020, with 5 main work streams having been identified:- 
 

1. Reinstating services (to be reported to the Service Delivery Panel); 

2. Economic recovery (Service Delivery Panel); 
3. Community recovery (Community Panel); 

4. Financial recovery (Resources Panel); 
5. Taking advantage of the positive legacy (Resources Panel). 

 

Also due to Covid-19, the Performance Framework 2020/21 was revised. The 
Panel received information on the proposed amendments to the current 

performance targets for 2020/21, which had been made necessary because of 
the effects of the coronavirus pandemic on the Council’s ability to meet its 
previously agreed targets. 

 

Page 36



  

6.3 Claire Hazeldene – Interim Executive Director (Finance & Customer Services), 
presented the 2021/22 Budget and an update on the Medium Term Financial 
Plan 2021/22 – 2024/25. The report contained a forecast of the longer term 

impact the Coronavirus pandemic has had on the financial position of the 
Authority. 

 

6.4  Vanessa Higgins – Information Business Partner, presented the Annual 
Report 2019/20  which compared Staffordshire Moorlands’ performance and 

costs with councils in the West Midlands region and nationally, highlighting 
further action where needed. She also advised members on how the Council 

continued to embed good information management practices through its 
ASSURED framework. The Information Governance Group, chaired by Mark 
Trillo, promoted these good practices and oversaw the Council’s approach to 

good information governance. 
  

6.5  Two presentations were given to members. The first was delivered by Jeff 
Plant, Director of Operations at EPIC Housing (Empowering People, Inspiring 
Communities) giving details of the organisation’s history and purpose in 

relation to the Council’s Empty Housing Strategy. 
 

 The second presentation updated the Panel on the Council’s Disabled 
Facilities Grant, which included proposals for the expansion of the Grant offer 
as part of the wider review of the Council’s Housing Renewal Assistance 

Policy. 
 

6.6  Neil Rodgers – Executive Director (Place), introduced a report to confirm that 

an engagement was under way with Norse Group Ltd to develop a joint 
venture partnership for Facilities Management Services and to provide a 

vehicle for securing commercial opportunities to offer such services to other 
public and private sector organisations in Derbyshire and Staffordshire. 

 

6.7  Members scrutinised a report introduced by Andrew Stokes – Chief Executive 
Officer, on the revised management structure for the Alliance. 

 
6.8  To ensure the business of the Council continued and for members to have the 

opportunity to comment on reports outside of formal committee meetings, 

information digests were distributed to all councillors. The Resources Panel 
received information digests on:- 

- The Development of an Organisational Development Strategy 
- An update on the Access to Services Strategy 
- Updated Freedom of Information & Environmental Information   

Regulations  
 
7. Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 
7.1  The Panel scrutinised a range of subjects over the year focused on services 

provided by the authority.  This included the annual report on the performance 
of Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) and Parkwood Leisure.  

 

Page 37



  

 A presentation was delivered by Kevin Melling and Jane Thomason from AES. 
Members requested for the organisation’s environmental actions, impacts and 
ambitions to be included in future updates. 

 
 Francois Smit - Regional Director and Elaine Harding – General Manager 

Parkwood Leisure, provided a presentation and it was agreed that the next 
annual performance update would include the percentage of use at each of 
the leisure centres. 

 
7.2 The Panel considered a report which identified the impact of COVID-19 on 

service delivery and the plans that were being put into place for recovery. 
Members supported the proposed recovery plans outlined within the report 
and identified areas of activity which required further consideration. 

 
7.3  Councillor Deaville – Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Leisure and 

Sports and Robert Wilks Principal Officer (Leisure and Recreation), introduced 
a report on the progress of the second stage of the Council’s Leisure 
Consultancy work. The Panel considered the information and a Leisure Facility 

Working Group was established to support the development of a ‘Leisure 
Transformation Plan’. 

 
7.4  Ben Haywood – Head of Development Services, attended a meeting of the 

Panel to introduce a report which appraised Members of:  

a. recent changes to the planning system enacted in the Business and 
Planning Act 2020  

b. proposed changes to the current Planning System as set out in the 

Government Consultation Document Published 6 August 2020 
c. proposed changes as set out in the White Paper “Planning for the 

Future” which was published for consultation by Government on 6th 
August 2020 

 

 Due to the level of information to be considered, Seminars were held after the 
meeting for all members to attend. 

 
7.5  Consideration was given to a variety of regeneration items such as an update 

on Leek Market Hall and Cheadle Town Centre Projects. These items were 

debated fully and members gave feedback to the Head of Regeneration.  
 

7.6  The Panel received an update report on the progress of the preparation of a 
Green Infrastructure Delivery Plan. Councillor Porter – Portfolio Holder for 
Climate Change and Biodiversity was present to highlight the key points within 

the report and respond to questions from members. Councillors wished to see 
measurable outcomes incorporated in the report. 

  
7.7 Members deliberated 3 Call-in requests of Cabinet/Portfolio Holder Decisions,  

in accordance with the procedure rules:- 

 

 Leek Market Hall – The Panel decided (by a vote) not to refer back the  

decision to the relevant portfolio holder for reconsideration. The 
Portfolio Holder was asked to note or take account of concerns 

Page 38



  

 Disposal of Plot 12-15 Victoria Business Park, Biddulph – The Panel 
decided (by a vote) to refer back the decision to Cabinet for 
reconsideration 

 Cheadle Town Centre Projects - The Panel decided (by a vote) to refer 
back the decision to Cabinet for reconsideration 

 
7.8  The first meeting of the Car Park Working Group took place and Katy Webster 

– Head of Assets, gave a presentation to keep the Panel updated on its 

progress to date.  
 

7.9  The Service Delivery Panel received the Physical Activity and Sports Strategy 
Update and the Development of a Homelessness Strategy Action Plan 

 in the form of an information digest. 

 
8. Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 

8.1  Members received the annual update from the Staffordshire Commissioner 
and scrutinised the annual operational policing report provided by Chief 

Inspector Mark Thorley. 
 

8.2  On a six monthly basis, the Panel receives a briefing paper introduced by 
Sharon Wheeler – Property Manager, which provides a performance and 
development update on Your Housing Group business areas identified in the 

legacy agreement. Members have the opportunity to fully scrutinise the 
performance of the organisation, comment and give feedback to the officers 

present.  
 

8.3 The Panel debated a report which outlined possible key social challenges and 

issues to consider in the recovery phase of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 

8.4 Councillor Porter – Portfolio Holder for Climate Change and Biodiversity, 
introduced a Climate Change Update report and a more recent briefing paper 
on the Climate Change Working Group which set out the work carried out by 

the Council to date. At a later meeting, the Head of Democratic and 
Community Services provided a verbal update on the Climate Change Action 

Plan. The Panel also received a Climate Change Update in the form of an 
Information Digest.  

 

8.5  At the request of a Panel member, representatives from The Early Outcomes 
Fund Project, gave a presentation on the work carried out by organisation. The 

Project aimed to develop a range of strategies and initiatives that would 
improve children’s speech, language and communication in the Early Years. 

 

8.6  Throughout the year, the Panel considered a range of community safety items, 
which included two Protection Orders. The first was a Wildfire Public Spaces 

Protection Order and the second was around Alcohol Exclusion Zones. 
Members supported the recommendation for Cabinet to approve the Orders.  

 

8.7 David Smith – Principal Officer Communities and Partnerships, attended a 
meeting to introduce a Household Duty of Care report which detailed the 

prevention of unlawful deposal of waste within the District. The Panel 

Page 39



  

recommended Cabinet set the fixed penalty amount for failure to comply with 
the household duty of care at the maximum permitted level of £400. 

 

8.8 The Delegated Decision – Proposal for use of Discretionary Disabled Facilities 
Funding for a Community Project at South Moorlands Leisure Centre was 

called-in by members. Following in depth scrutiny and in accordance with the 
procedure rules, the Panel decided not to refer back the decision to the 
relevant Portfolio Holder for reconsideration. 

 
9. Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 

9.1  The Panel scrutinised a range of subjects over the year, focused on items 
relating to the health service at the request of the Panel via the Work 

Programme. Members received updates from each of the representatives 
below and had the opportunity to ask questions:- 

 

 Jennie Collier - Managing Director, Midlands Partnership 
Foundation NHS Trust gave a detailed presentation on Covid-19 

and an update on community hospitals. Directors Tracey Shewan 
and Mark Seaton from the Clinical Commissioning Group were also 

present for this item. 

 Tony Bullock – Lead Commissioner, Public Health Commissioning 
at SCC, provided a presentation on the Drug and Alcohol Service. 

 Marcus Warnes – Accountable Officer and Tracey Shewan, CCG 
gave an Annual Update presentation and further information around 

Integrated Care Hub consultation. 
 

9.2 Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, a special meeting of the Panel was convened 
in April 2020, for Dr Harland to introduce a presentation detailing the Local Outbreak 
Control Plan. County Councillor Alan White (Cabinet Member for Health & Wellbeing) 

was also present at this meeting. Later in the year, they attended again to provide the 
latest comprehensive update on Covid-19 to the Panel.  
 

9.3 At the meeting in December 2020, the Chair advised members that the SMDC 
Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel was taking the lead on scrutiny of the 

temporary closure of the Leek Minor Injuries Unit (MIU) only. Scrutiny on all 
other aspects, including anything permanent, remained under the Staffordshire 

County Council’s Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee. 
 
9.4 Neil Carr O.B.E. – Chief Executive Officer and Jennie Collier – Managing 

Director, were present from the Midlands Partnership Foundation NHS Trust to 
respond to questions and gave assurance that Leek MIU had closed 

temporarily.  
 

9.5 The Officers also attended the meeting of the Panel in March 2021, to provide 

the latest information on Leek MIU and an update on the development of the 
Leek Integrated Care Hub.  During this meeting, the CEO confirmed the Trust 
was in a position to make some conditional commitments to the Panel on the 

re-opening of Leek MIU by the end of June 2021, when assured it can be 
done safely across the system and certain criteria were met. 

 

Page 40



  

9.6 At the request of this Panel, a letter was sent to Marcus Warnes, Accountable 
Officer for the North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group and also Cllr 
Jeremy Pert, Chair of Staffordshire County Council’s Healthy Staffordshire 

Select Committee, asking that the free service be re-instated in Leek for 
hearing loss, essential hearing aid maintenance and the provision of hearing 

aid batteries. 
 
9.7 A letter was sent to the County Council to request that the phases for carers to 

receive Covid-19 vaccinations be disclosed to GP’s to expediate the 
vaccination of all carers. 

 
9.8 Finally, a letter of thanks was sent on behalf of the Panel to the vaccination 

stations within the Moorlands. 

 
 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 

 
         Terms of Reference and Membership of Overview and Scrutiny Panels 

 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Panel Scope 

Resources 

Membership: Cllrs; Atkins, 

Davies, Ellis, Fallows, Gledhill, 

Hawkins, Heath, Holmes, 
Hughes, Hulme, K Jackson, 
Jones, Lea, Malyon, Riley, 

Routledge, Shaw, Wilkinson and 
Yates. 

Budget and policy framework, service 

improvement and performance monitoring; 
resource allocation; accessibility of 

services; co-ordination of scrutiny work 

programme; Strategic Alliance and 
efficiencies; overview and scrutiny of all 

functional responsibilities of the portfolios 
covering finance and resources, customer 
services and performance management. 

 
Service Delivery 

Membership: Cllrs; Aberley, 

Bentley, Brady, Davies, Emery, 

Flunder, Hawkins, Herdman, 
Hoptroff, Hughes, Page, Plimley, 

Price, Redfern, Roberts, Salt, 

Sheldon, Ward and Wood. 
 

The delivery of council services including 
environment, planning (including 

development and property); housing and 
regeneration; culture (arts, leisure, sport, 

parks, countryside, tourism); overview and 

scrutiny of the portfolio(s) covering 
regeneration, environment, culture, leisure 
and planning, development and property. 

 

Health 
Membership: Cllrs; Alcock, 

Atkins, Cawley, Fallows, Flunder,  

Herdman, Holmes, Hughes, 
Hulme, Jones, Lawson,  Malyon, 

McNicol, Price, Redfern, Riley, 
Salt, Swindlehurst and Wood. 

 

Scrutiny of health service provision in the 
Staffordshire Moorlands (as defined in the 

Code of Joint Working with Staffordshire 
County Council) contributing to the work of 

the Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee, which has overall responsibility 

for health scrutiny. 

 
Community 

Aberley, Bentley, Heath, 

Herdman, Holmes, Hoptroff, 
Hughes, Hulme, Johnson, Jones, 

Martin, Mcnicol,  Riley, Roberts, 
Shaw, Swindlehurst, Taylor, 

Ward and Yates. 

 
 

 

Democratic and community engagement, 
equalities and diversity, sustainability & 
climate change, community safety, the 

Council’s Community Leadership Scheme, 
locality working, the councillor call for 

action, the Local Strategic Partnership 
(LSP) and other partnerships.  The 

commissioning/delivery of services by 

Staffordshire County Council, parish/town 
councils and the voluntary/third sector. 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



To 
be 
conf

irme
d 

 

Empty 
Prope
rty 

Strate
gy 

(includ
ing 
initiati

ves 
and 

grants 
for 
these 

to 
come 

back 
into 
operat

ion) 

A 
Stok
es 

 Staff 
Pay 

Grade 
Revie
w 

A 
Stok

es 

 Revie
w of 
Equali

ty in 
Delive

ry of 
Servic
es 

L 
Ver
non 

 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
 

Date Item Contact 

Officer 

23 June 2021 Call-in – Community Orchards  

  

28 July 2021 4th Quarter 2019/20 Procurement, Performance & Financial Review J Betts 

   

22 September 2021 Local Tax Reduction Scheme Review & Focus on UC implications J Betts 

1st Quarter Finance, Performance & Procurement Review 2021/22 J Betts 

Medium Term Financial Plan Update K Pointon 

Annual Scrutiny Review S Hampton 

   

17 November 2021 Annual Health & Safety Report 2020/21 D Owen 

Procurement Strategy  

Joint Venture Partnership to Deliver Facilities Management Services N Rodgers 

   

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 11



 Organ
isation
al 

Devel
opme

nt 
Strate
gy 

T 
Coo
per 

 Fleet 
Procur
ement 

Strate
gy 

N 
Kem
p 

 Cornhi

ll 
Emplo
yment 

Units 

H 

Pak
pah
an 

 Ongoi
ng 

costs 
of the 
Comm

unity 
Orcha

rds 
Sche
me 

D 
Smit

h 

 Install

ation 
of 

LED 

K 

Web
ster 

P
age 46



lightin
g 
within 

Moorl
ands 

House 

 Deme
ntia – 

Staff 
Traini
ng & 

Equip
ment 

Requir
ed 

 

 

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	8 Medium Term Financial Plan Update
	Appendix A  for Medium Term Financial Plan Update

	9 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Review and Focus on Universal Credit Implications
	10 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2020-21
	Appendix A  - Terms of Reference and Membership of Overview and Scrutiny Panels

	11 Work Programme
	13 Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting

